
 

 

 

 
 

Board of Zoning Adjustment 

 
 

       BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

February 27th, 2024 

Pre-meeting – 3:30 p.m. (7th Floor) 

Meeting – 4:00 p.m. (Council Chambers) 

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

Table of Contents 

MINUTES JANUARY 2024 .................................................................................................................................. 3 

AGENDA .......................................................................................................................................................... 7 

CASE NO. 1 2030 BELTLINE RD. SW .................................................................................................................... 9 

MINUTES .................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

CASE NO. 2 1005 BELTLINE RD. SW .................................................................................................................. 11 

PICTURE 1 ................................................................................................................................................................... 12 
PICTURE 2 ................................................................................................................................................................... 13 
PICTURE 3 ................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

CASE NO. 3 809 BELTLINE RD. SW ................................................................................................................... 15 

PICTURE 1 ................................................................................................................................................................... 16 
PICTURE 2 ................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

CASE NO. 4 211 WEST MOULTON ST. SW ........................................................................................................ 18 

EXISTING CONDITIONS & EROSION CONTROL..................................................................................................................... 19 
PARKING LAYOUT PLAN ................................................................................................................................................. 20 
LEASE AGREEMENT PAGE 1 ............................................................................................................................................ 21 
LEASE AGREEMENT PAGE 2 ............................................................................................................................................ 22 
LEASE AGREEMENT PAGE 3 ............................................................................................................................................ 23 
LEASE AGREEMENT PAGE 4 ............................................................................................................................................ 24 
LEASE AGREEMENT PAGE 5 ............................................................................................................................................ 25 
LEASE AGREEMENT PAGE 6 ............................................................................................................................................ 26 

CASE NO. 5 1006 BELTLINE RD. SE ................................................................................................................... 27 

PICTURE 1 ................................................................................................................................................................... 28 
PICTURE 2 ................................................................................................................................................................... 29 
PICTURE 3 ................................................................................................................................................................... 30 
PICTURE 4 ................................................................................................................................................................... 31 
PICTURE 5 ................................................................................................................................................................... 32 
PICTURE 6 ................................................................................................................................................................... 33 
PICTURE 7 ................................................................................................................................................................... 34 
PICTURE 8 ................................................................................................................................................................... 35 

CASE NO. 6 1520 WEST MOULTON ST. SW ....................................................................................................... 36 

LETTER ....................................................................................................................................................................... 37 
DENIAL LETTER ............................................................................................................................................................ 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

MINUTES JANUARY 2024 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:     Delayne Dean, Mr. Chester Ayers, and Mr. Mark McCurry 

         

SUPERNUMERARIES:       Mr. Jeremy Goforth,  

 

COPIED TO:       Mr. George Allen       

 

OTHERS PRESENT:       Mrs. Ruth Priest, Assistant City Attorney 

        Mr. Tommie Williams, Planning Department 

        Mr. Bob Sims, Building Inspector 

             Mr. John Waggoner, Building Inspector and Recorder 

         

 

Chair, Delayne Dean called the meeting to order at 4:05 p.m. in the Council Chambers on the 

first floor at City Hall.   

 

Chair asked that role be called. Present as noted above. 

 

Chair asked if the November minutes required any corrections. There were no corrections made. 

Mr. Brad Townson motioned to approve the minutes, Mr. Mark McCurry seconded the motion. 

On a voice vote, all yes, the motion carried. The minutes from the November 2023 meeting were 

approved. 

 

CASE NO. 1 

  

Application and appeal of an administrative decision to deny Calvin Washington a certificate of 

occupancy for non-compliance of Section 25-11 and 25-16 (2) (b) of the Zoning Ordinance in 

order to provide 88 spaces of off street/off premise parking for an event center located at 211 

West Moulton Street SW. Property for the event center is zoned B-1 Business District. 

 

Chair asked to hear this case at the end of the meeting. 

 

Nathan Tomberlin with Pugh Wright McAnally presented the case to the Board. Mr. Tomberlin 

stated his address is 310 8th Avenue Ne. and would be representing Calvin Washington. Mr. 

Tomberlin asked to table this case until next month’s agenda. Routh Priest asked for Mr. 

Tomberlin to fill in the application as representative. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of an administrative decision to deny Kanavis Lee a home occupation in 

order to operate a home office for a mobile bar located at 514 Tammy Street SW. The property 

for the home occupation is zoned R-2 Residential Single Family District. 

 

Kanavis Lee presented this case to the Board. Mr. Lee stated his address as 514 Tammy Street 

SW. Mr. Lee stated he would like to park his enclosed Pepsi Cola trailer at the residence.  



 

4 

 

 

Chair asked if there any questions from the Board. Chester Ayers asked if the trailer had any 

advertisements or if it is a solid color. Mr. Lee stated the trailer has no advertisements and is a 

solid color. Chair asked if the residence has a garage or carport. Mr. Lee stated no, the trailer 

would be parked on the side of the house. Chair stated Home Occupations are typically granted 

based on the use of one room in the home for an office with no storage of equipment.  

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for Public comments. None. Chair 

asked for Building Department comments. None. Chair asked for Planning Department 

comment. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair asked the Board for its ruling. 

Mark McCurry made a motion to vote on the variance. Chester Ayers made a second. Chair 

called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

  

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of an administrative decision to deny Javier E Romero a home 

occupation in order to operate a general printing business located at 611 Martha Street SW. The 

property for the home occupation is zoned R-1 Residential Single Family District.  

 

Javier Romero presented this case to the Board. Mr. Romero stated his address is 611 Martha 

Street SW. Mr. Romero stated he would like to open a printing business in the back of the home. 

Mr. Romero stated he would like to print signs and banners. Chair asked the size of the 

equipment. Mr. Romero stated small printers. Chair stated manufacturing is not allowed at the 

home. Chair stated you cannot run printers twenty four hours a day causing a nuisance to the 

neighbors. Mr. Romero stated four (4) feet banners would be the largest size. Mr. Romero stated 

the operation would remain small at the residence and hopes to move into a business location in 

the future. Chair stated you cannot advertise at the home. Chair stated you may have a sign on 

the vehicle so long it does not contain the home address. Chair stated you cannot have employees 

or customers visit the residence. Chair stated the Home Occupation should be unnoticeable to the 

neighbors. 

 

Chair asked if there were questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for Public comments. 

None. Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. Bob Sims asked if the enclosure 

for the printing business was a separate building or attached to the home. Mr. Romero stated the 

enclosure is under the same roof as the home. Bob Sims stated the quantity of signs to be 

produced must be indicative of the use of one room in the home. Mr. Romero stated he 

understood. Chair asked for comments from the Planning Department. None. Chair closed call 

for public testimony. Chair asked the Board for its ruling. Chester Ayers made a motion to vote 

on the variance. Mark McCurry made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was 

approved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

5 

 

 

CASE NO. 4 

 

Application and appeal of Posey and Cameron Horton III for a fourteen foot (14’) front yard 

setback variance from Section 25-10.10 (2) (c) of the Zoning Ordinance in order to construct a 

new detached single family dwelling located at 703 Fink Street NW. The property for the set-

back variance is zoned R-3 Residential Single Family District. 

 

Mr. David Fagerman with X-Ram presented this case before the Board. Mr. Fagerman stated he 

was representing the Horton’s. Mr. Fagerman stated his address is 560 Pine Street. Mr. Fagerman 

stated the previous home has been demolished. Mr. Fagerman stated his client would like to 

build a new home that would encroach less into the front yard set-back than the previous home. 

Mr. Fagerman stated the previous home encroached into the set-back about sixteen feet. 

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked if previous home was non-

conforming and was built before the ordinance was in place. Mr. Fagerman stated yes. Chair 

asked if the new home would conform more closely to the ordinance than the previous home. 

Mr. Fagerman stated yes. Chair asked for Public comments. None. Chair asked for Building 

Department comments. None. Chair asked for Planning Department comment. None. Chair 

closed call for public testimony. Chair asked the Board for its ruling. Jeremy Goforth made a 

motion to vote on the variance. Mark McCurry made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the 

motion was approved. 

 

CASE NO. 5 

 

Application and appeal of Responsible Partners, LLC for a sign variance from Section 25-77 (c) 

(1) in order to replace an existing painted sign located at 609 Bank Street NW. The property for 

the sign variance is zoned B-5 Central Business District. 

 

Mr. Michael Lacascio with Responsible Partners LLC presented this case before the Board. Mr. 

Lacascio stated he owns the business at 609 Bank Street NW. Mr. Lacascio stated he would like 

to redo the previous Coca Cola wall mural. Mr. Lacascio stated Coca Cola would provide the 

paint so the mural would match the year of the building. Mr. Lacascio stated Coca Cola 

approached them about the mural because they will be losing the mural where the Brick is when 

the parking lot goes up. Chair asked what was on the old mural. Mr. Lacascio stated the mural 

was actually a Coke sign for the old furniture store. 

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. Chair asked if Coke products will be sold at the store. 

Mr. Lacascio stated yes. Chair stated you must sell Coke products from your store, otherwise the 

sign would be off-premise advertising. Chair asked for the rough dimensions of the wall for the 

proposed sign. Mr. Lacascio stated the wall is eighteen feet by fifty feet long. Chair asked for 

other questions from the board. Jeremy Goforth asked Bob Sims for the normal allowance of a 

wall sign. Bob Simms stated it is up to 200 square feet and ten percent of the wall facing. Bob 

Sims stated the wall is 900 square feet and asked for the size of the proposed sign. Jeremy 

Goforth stated the sign is about 540 square feet which is about triple the allowance. Bob Sims 

stated the proposed sign is 340 square feet over the maximum allowed and the wall would have 



 

6 

 

to be 2,000 square feet. Bob Sims stated the applicant is asking to put the sign back in the 

original location. Tommie Williams asked if the new sign would be bigger than the old sign. 

Chester Ayers stated the new sign will be smaller. 

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for comments from the Public. 

None. Chair asked for comments from Building Department. None. Chair asked for comments 

from Planning Department. Tommie Williams asked what size sign would be allowed. Bob Sims 

stated 90 square feet would be allowed. Jeremy Goforth stated if the sign was much smaller than 

requested it would not cover up the old sign and the business name is at the top of the sign. Chair 

asked for any more comments from the Planning Department. None. . None. Chair closed call for 

public testimony. Chair asked the Board for its ruling. Mark McCurry made a motion to vote on 

the variance. Jeremy Goforth made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was 

approved. 

 

CASE NO. 6 

 

Application and appeal of Frank Pate for a seven foot (7’) rear yard variance from Section 25-

10.9 (2) (d) of the Zoning Ordinance in order to construct a rear covered patio located at 4303 

Jade Circle SE. The property for the set-back variance is zoned R-2 Residential Single Family 

District. 

 

Frank Pate presented this case before the Board. Mr. Pate stated his address is 1710 Eastwood 

Drive SE. Mr. Pate stated he is representing Michael McLeod whose address is 4303 Jade Circle. 

Chair asked Mr. Pate to correct the address for appeal on the application before leaving. Mr. Pate 

stated the owner was wanting a new screen porch to be constructed on the back of the house. Mr. 

Pate stated the porch would be 7 feet over the 40 foot rear yard set-back. 

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked if this home is in a HOA 

neighborhood. Mr. Pate stated yes and the HOA has approved this addition. Mr. Pate stated the 

homes to the rear of the property are zoned R-3 and have a 35 foot rear yard set-back. Chair 

stated the HOA approval was necessary for this project.  

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for Public comments. None. Chair 

asked for Building Department comments. Bob Sims asked Mr. Pate to complete the application. 

Chair asked for Planning Department comment. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. 

Chair asked the Board for its ruling. Chester Ayers made a motion to vote on the variance. 

Jeremy Goforth made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at 5:05 p.m. 

 

_________________________   

DeLayne Dean, Chair  

 

 

 



 

7 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

CASE NO. 1 

 
Application and appeal of Trav-Ad Signs from Section 25-73 (2) for a sign area variance for on 
premise directional signs for Westmeade Baptist Church located at 2030 Beltline Road SW. This 
property is designated M-1A Expressway Commercial Zoning District. The variance request for 
the directional signs is as follows: 
• Twenty six (26) square feet area variance to install one (1) thirty (30) square feet 
directional sign. 
• Eight (8) square feet area variance to install six (6) directional signs. 
 
Case No. 7 was advertised in November 2023 with an incorrect address and zoning designation, 
the case passed with all YES votes. The corrections are reflected in the above Case No. 1. 
 
CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of Slims Chickens from Section 25-77 (e) (1) for a sign area variance of 

two hundred twenty seven (227) square feet to install a die-cut/metal/non-lighted/wall décor sign 

located at 1005 Beltline Road SW. The property for the sign area variance is designated M-1A 

Expressway Commercial Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of Trav-Ad Signs from Section 25-77 (e) (2) for a sign area variance of 

one hundred and ten (110) square feet to install attached on premise signs located at 809 Beltline 

Road SW. The property for the sign area variance is designated M-1A Expressway Commercial 

Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 4 

 

Application and appeal of an administrative decision to deny Calvin Washington a certificate of 

occupancy for non-compliance of Section 25-11 and 25-16 (2) (b) of the Zoning Ordinance in 

order to provide 88 spaces of off street/off premise parking for an event center located at 211 

West Moulton Street SW. Property for the event center is zoned B-1 Business District. 

Application and appeal of Calvin Washington from section 25-16 (9) for a landscaping and 

lighting variance to provide parking for an event center located at 211 West Moulton Street SW. 

The proposed parking area is located at 212 1st Avenue SW and is designated M-2 General 

Industry Zoning District.  

 

CASE NO. 5 

 

Application and appeal of Texas Roadhouse from section 25-77 (e) for a sign area variance of 

ninety (90) square feet to install attached LED lighted signs located at 1006 Beltline Road SE. 



 

8 

 

The property for the sign area variance is designated M-1A Expressway Commercial Zoning 

District. 

 

CASE NO. 6 

 

Application and appeal of an administrative decision to deny AAA Pawn Shop a certificate of 

occupancy for non-compliance of Section 25-12 of the Zoning Ordinance to operate a business 

licensed under the Pawn Shop Act located at 1520 A West Moulton Street. AAA Pawn Shop is 

requesting a variance from 25-13 to move the business to an adjacent suite in the same building.  

The property for the pawn shop is designated M-1 Light Industry Zoning District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

9 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 1 2030 BELTLINE RD. SW 



 

10 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Minutes 



 

11 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 2 1005 BELTLINE RD. SW 



 

12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 1 



 

13 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 2 



 

14 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 3 



 

15 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 3 809 BELTLINE RD. SW 



 

16 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 1 



 

17 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 2 



 

18 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 4 211 WEST MOULTON ST. SW 



 

19 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Existing Conditions & Erosion Control 



 

20 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parking Layout Plan 



 

21 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lease Agreement Page 1 



 

22 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Lease Agreement Page 2 



 

23 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lease Agreement Page 3 



 

24 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Lease Agreement Page 4 



 

25 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lease Agreement Page 5 



 

26 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lease Agreement Page 6 



 

27 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 5 1006 BELTLINE RD. SE 



 

28 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 1 



 

29 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 2 



 

30 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 3 



 

31 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 4 



 

32 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 5 



 

33 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 6 



 

34 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 7 



 

35 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 8 



 

36 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 6 1520 WEST MOULTON ST. SW 



 

37 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Letter 



 

38 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Denial Letter 


	Minutes January 2024
	AGENDA
	case no. 1 2030 beltline rd. sw
	Minutes

	case no. 2 1005 beltline rd. sw
	Picture 1
	Picture 2
	Picture 3

	case no. 3 809 beltline rd. sw
	Picture 1
	Picture 2

	case no. 4 211 west moulton st. sw
	Existing Conditions & Erosion Control
	Parking Layout Plan
	Lease Agreement Page 1
	Lease Agreement Page 2
	Lease Agreement Page 3
	Lease Agreement Page 4
	Lease Agreement Page 5
	Lease Agreement Page 6

	Case No. 5 1006 Beltline rd. se
	Picture 1
	Picture 2
	Picture 3
	Picture 4
	Picture 5
	Picture 6
	Picture 7
	Picture 8

	Case no. 6 1520 west moulton st. sw
	Letter
	Denial Letter


